ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 1, 2006
8:43 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Gene Therri aul t

Senator Hollis French

Senator G etchen GQuess

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 20
Proposi ng an anendnent to the section of the Constitution of the
State of Alaska relating to marriage.

MOVED SJR 20 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO 252
"An Act relating to the definition of 'child abuse and negl ect’
for child protection purposes; and providing for an effective
date."

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE BILL NO 301
"An Act relating to granting certain defendants an absolute
right to change venue in civil actions; setting venue for civil
actions based on enploynent at the enployer's principal place of
business; allowing nmultiple defendants to control venue by
agreenent; anending Rule 3, Alaska Rules of Civil Procedure; and
providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 249
"An Act relating to crimnal justice information."
SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE BILL NO 216

"An Act relating to bail."
MOVED CSSB 216(JUD) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 1, 2006



SENATE BI LL NO. 222
"An Act relating to breaches of security involving personal
informati on, consunmer report security freezes, consunmer credit
nmonitoring, «credit accuracy, protection of social security
nunbers, disposal of records, factual declarations of innocence
after identity theft, filing police reports regarding identity
theft, and furnishing consunmer credit header information; and
amendi ng Rul e 60, Al aska Rules of Cvil Procedure.”

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 284
"An Act relating to sentencing for the conmi ssion of a felony
whi | e under the influence of alcohol."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SJR 20
SHORT TI TLE: CONST. AM BENEFI TS & MARRI AGE
SPONSOR(s) : JUDI Cl ARY

02/ 14/ 06 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 06 (S) JUD, FIN

02/ 16/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 16/ 06 (S <Pendi ng Referral >

02/ 21/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 21/ 06 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 21/ 06 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 28/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 28/ 06 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 28/ 06 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

BILL: SB 301
SHORT TITLE: CHANGE OF VENUE IN Cl VI L CASES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) SEEKI NS

02/ 14/ 06 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 06 (S) JuD, FIN

02/ 22/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 22/ 06 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 22/ 06 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 01/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 249
SHORT TITLE. REPORTI NG BAI L AND RELEASE | NFORMATI ON
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) FRENCH

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 1, 2006



01/ 23/ 06 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 23/ 06 (S) JUD

02/ 15/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 15/ 06 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 15/ 06 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 01/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Li z Boario
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SIR 20

Doug Veit
Crai g, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SIR 20

Bel i nda Sessi ons
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SIR 20

Tamry Davi s
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SIR 20

Mo McBride
No address provi ded
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SIR 20

Dr. Kat hy Sweeney
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SIR 20

Susan Parkes, Deputy Attorney Ceneral
Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 216

Portia Parker, Deputy Conm ssioner
Departnent of Corrections

431 N. Franklin, Suite 400

Juneau, AK 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 216

Senat or Gene Therri aul t

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 1,

2006



Al aska State Capitol
Juneau, AK 99801-1182
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 284

Dave Stancliff, Legislative Aide

Staff to Senator Gene Therriault

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 284

David Lawer, Senior Vice President
First National Bank of Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 222

Robert Fagerstrom
Nonme, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 301

M chael Shider, Attorney
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 301

James Ml er
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 301

Wl ford Ryan
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 301

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:43:58 AM Present were Senators
Hollis French, Charlie Huggins, Gene Therriault, G etchen Quess,
and Chair Ral ph Seekins.

SJR 20- CONST. AM  BENEFI TS & MARRI AGE

CHAI R RALPH SEEKI NS announced SJR 20 to be up for consideration.

8:44: 35 AM
LIZ BOARIO informed the conmmttee that she was testifying for
herself as well as her husband. She echoed a remark from

previous testinony that SJR 20 was discrimnatory and divisive.
She said it dishonors the hallmrks of Alaska and of the United
States Constitution, specifically the Equal Protection C ause.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 1, 2006



She has not heard serious argunment that the resolution is not
harnful. Instead what she is hearing is the mantra regarding the
people’s wll, and history is full of tragic exanples of
majority rmanipulation. She suggested there were plenty of
serious issues that need attention wthout people having to
create new ones where none exist. She said she is deeply
saddened to wtness what she saw as a polite charade.
Constitutional anmendnents are historically used to mmke things
better for the people and SJR 20 would hurt talented people who
work for the betternent of all Al askans.

8:48: 02 AM

DOUG VEIT testified in opposition to SIJR 20. He said it was
patently discrimnatory; it singles out a particular class of
peopl e and systematically deprives them of econonic and soci al
resources sinply because of their nenbership in the class. He
suggested there were specific reasons for the separation of
church and state. He said he has not heard any testinony of
support for the resolution that passes the logic test.

8:51: 23 AM
BELI NDA SESSIONS testified in opposition to SIR 20 and said she
spoke for her partner as well. She said the Alaska State

Constitution should guarantee basic rights, not take them away.
She described her 23-year |esbian relationship and said they
gladly pay taxes, attend church, volunteer in the comunity, and
contribute nonetarily to organizations that help the needy. If
the Legislature succeeds in overturning the Alaska Suprenme
Court, Alaska will be guilty of discrimnation by giving sone
enpl oyees better benefits packages than others. It is an
enpl oynent issue and not a marriage i ssue, she stated.

8:53:47 AM

MS5. SESSIONS comented that equitable benefits packages woul d
increase the ability of the schools to recruit and retain
teachers. She urged the comrittee to reject the resol ution.

8:54:58 AM

TAMW DAVIS testified in opposition to SIJR 20. She noted
previous testinmony in opposition to the resolution has been
wrought with thoughtful, heartfelt, and intelligent comrents. It
is her opinion that SJR 20 nmandates unequal conpensation for
equal work for individuals who choose domestic partnership as an
alternative to church or state-sanctioned union as well as those
who are not able by law to cone into a legally binding marriage.
She urged the conmittee to support the civil liberties of all
Al askan citizens and reject the resolution.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 1, 2006



8:56: 46 am

MO MCBRIDE testified in opposition to SIJR 20. She said she is
not in one of the groups affected by the issue but feels very
strongly that the Alaska State Constitution was being
threatened. She suggested conmttee nenbers transpose another
group of people into the resolution, such as Hispanics, and see
whet her that seemed |like a fair resolution. She said adding
exclusionary language to the Constitution is against what the
creators of the docunment intended. She said the Preanble states
very clearly they wanted to transmt to succeeding generations
the heritage of political, civil, and religious liberty. They
reiterated it again in the inherent rights section of Article 1.
She strongly urged the comnmttee to reject the resol ution.

8:59: 38 AM

KATHY SWEENEY testified in opposition to SIJIR 20. She said as a
licensed healthcare official she found it wunfathomable that
elected officials were witing legislation that would deny
heal thcare to citizens of Al aska. She considered the irony that
recently United States Senator Lisa Mirkowski addressed nenbers
of the conmttee along with the entire Legislative body and
encouraged them to work towards inproving healthcare for al
Al askans.

O her legislative committees are working diligently to nmake
Al aska an attractive state for young professionals to conme and
fulfill enploynent roles, she stated. SJR 20 works against that
goal .

M5. SWEENEY noted that nore than 99 percent of people who
testified have opposition to the resolution. Menbers of the
commttee have suggested the issue was one of nuch contention
yet she saw no evidence of it. She said abortion was a
contentious issue and iif that were the issue before the
commttee there would be nuch heated debate on both sides, yet
testimony on SJR 20 was one-si ded.

9:04: 02 AM

M5. SWEENEY suggested that when it cones to politics, the
majority of Americans are paralyzed by apathy and suggested it
was due to elected officials not listening to their
constituents.

CHAI R SEEKI NS cl osed public testinony.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced a brief recess at 9:05:48 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 1, 2006



9:10: 25 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked for discussion anong conmittee nenbers.

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT commented the issue was difficult and
should not be taken lightly. It would require a super majority
to pass the Senate since it would be an anendnent to the Al aska
State Constitution. He said the debate had been good and the
| anguage of SJR 20 would be nodified throughout the process and
so he noved SIR 20 out of commttee wth individual
recommendat i ons.

SENATOR FRENCH objected. He said the neasure was brought in
response to a unani nous Al aska Suprene Court decision that was
penned by one of the nore conservative nmenbers of the court. The
proposal seeks to overturn that decision. The Court found that
the state could not deny health benefits to long-term partners
of its gay enployees consistent wth the Equal Protection
Clause. He said this was a clear nessage of equal pay for equal
work. He said he could not let SIJIR 20 go forward because it
chips away at the Equal Protection Clause of the Al aska State
Constitution. He said that was nore than he could bear and
mai nt ai ned hi s objection.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced a brief recess at 9:13: 22 AM

9:13: 35 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS brought the conmttee neeting back to order and
asked for further discussion.

SENATOR THERRI AULT stated a three-two vote out of conmmttee did
not amount to a two-thirds vote and he did not know whet her the
measure would see a two-thirds vote on the Senate Floor. He
contended legislators continually hear testinony on decisions
that the Court nakes and said it is the way the system is
designed. He insisted that suggesting an anendnent to the
Constitution could not be unconstitutional and that the voters
shoul d be trusted to do the right thing. He said since voters in
his district voted 4-1 in favor of the Marriage Anendnent, SJIR
20 deserved further discussion and should not be halted in the
first conmttee of referral.

9:15:49 AM

SENATOR GUESS suggested SJR 20 was not what people were | ooking
for. She expressed sadness that Alaskans have had to cone
forward and speak about their sexuality in front of canera and
that the Legislature was going to continue that process by

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 1, 2006



nmoving the resolution out of conmttee. She said the issue was
about asking the nmajority to vote on mnority rights and it is
wong and discrimnatory. She said she would vote to keep the
resolution in comrittee to die and voiced support for letting
Al aska nove forward.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he interpreted the Al aska Suprene Court
opinion to mean that the 1998 Marriage Anendnent did not speak
to the issue. He said footnote 38 says the Court recognized the
benefit prograns becane discrimnatory only after the electorate
adopted the Marriage Amendnent in 1998. The courts have said
that the people have forced the state to treat sane-sex couples
as though they were nmarried even though they are not. The state
needs to ask the people whether that was their intent. He said
it was the right of the people to decide whether they accept the
Al aska Suprene Court ruling.

9:19: 09 AM

Roll call proved SJR 20 passed out of committee on a 3-2 vote
with Senators Huggins, Therriault, and Seekins voting yea; and
Senators French and Guess voting nay.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced a brief recess at 9:19:44 AM

SB 216- BAl L RESTRI CTI ONS

9:21:12 AM
CHAI R RALPH SEEKI NS announced SB 216 to be up for consideration.

SENATOR CHARLI E HUGA NS spoke approval of the anendnment offered
by Senator French the previous day.

SENATOR HOLLI S FRENCH npved Anendment 2.

24- LS1300\F. 1
Luckhaupt

AMENDMENT 2

OFFERED | N THE SENATE BY SENATOR FRENCH
TO CSSB 216( ), Draft Version "F"

Page 1, lines 3 - 4:
Delete all material and insert:
"* Section 1. AS 11.56.310(a) is anended to read:
(a) One conmits the crime of escape in the second
degree if, without lawful authority, one
(1) renoves oneself from

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 1, 2006



read:

(A a correctional facility while wunder
of ficial detention;
(B) official detention for a felony or for
extradition; or
(O official detention and, during the
escape or at any tine before being restored to
official detention, one possesses on or about oneself
a firearm
(2) vi ol at es AS 11.56. 335 or 11. 56. 340
[ AS 11.56.340] and, during the time of the unlawful evasion
or at any time before being restored to official detention,
one possesses on or about oneself a firearm or
(3) removes, tanpers wth, or disables the
el ectronic nonitoring equipnment, or |eaves one's residence
or ot her place designated by the conm ssioner of
corrections for the service by electronic nonitoring of
official detention for a felony.
Sec. 2. AS 11.56.320(a) is anended to read:
(a) One commts the crinme of escape in the third
degree if one

(1) removes oneself from official detention
during any |awful novenent or activity incident to
conf i nenent wi t hin a correctional facility for a
m sdemeanor; or

(2) vi ol ates AS 11.56. 335 or 11. 56. 340

[ AS 11.56.340] and | eaves or attenpts to | eave the state.
Sec. 3. AS 11.56 is anended by adding a new section to

Sec. 11.56.335. Unlawful evasion in the first degree.
(a) A person commts the crime of unlawful evasion in the
first degree if, while charged with or convicted of a
f el ony,

(1) the person fails to return to official
detention within the time authorized followng tenporary
| eave granted for a specific purpose or limted period,

i ncluding | eave granted under AS 33.30.181; or
(2) while on furlough wunder AS 33.30.101 -
33.30.131, the person fails to return to the place of
confinenment or residence within the tinme authorized by
t hose havi ng direct supervision.
(b) Unlawful evasion is a class C fel ony.
Sec. 4. AS 11.56.340(a) is anmended to read:
(a) A person commits the crinme of unlawful evasion in
the second degree if, while charged with or convicted of a
[ FELONY OR A] m sdeneanor,
(1) the person fails to return to official
detention within the tinme authorized followi ng tenporary

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- March 1, 2006



| eave granted for a specific purpose or limted period,
i ncludi ng | eave granted under AS 33.30.181; or

(2) while on furlough wunder AS 33.30.101 -
33.30.131, the person fails to return to the place of
confinement or residence within the tinme authorized by
t hose having direct supervision.”

Renunber the follow ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 1, following line 12:

Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 6. AS 33.30.141(b) is anmended to read:
(b) The failure of a prisoner on a furlough to

return to the place of confinenent or
residence within the tinme specified by those
havi ng direct supervision over the prisoner
is an unlawful evasion under AS 11.56.335 or
11.56.340 [AS 11.56.340]."

(c)

Renunber the followi ng bill section accordingly.
CHAI R SEEKI NS obj ected for expl anation.

SENATOR FRENCH explained the anendnent would establish two
classes of wunlawful evasion. Unlawful evasion in the first
degree woul d be that which occurs when a person is being held on
a felony charge. Unlawful evasion in the second degree would be
that which occurs when a person is being held on a m sdeneanor
charge. There is a reference on the bottom of page 2 to explain
what woul d happen to a prisoner who does not cone back from a
furl ough.

9:23:52 AM

SUSAN PARKES, Deputy Attorney General, Departnent of Law (DQL),
said she supports Amendnent 2 but noted Section 4 anends the
current unlawful evasion but it doesn’'t change the title of the
crine. She said the title of the crime needed to be changed so
that it reads “unlawful evasion in the second degree.”

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT noved an anendnent to Amendment 2.
Conceptual ly insert the suggested title for Section 4.

9:25:46 AM
Hearing no objections, the conceptual anmendnment to Anmendnent 2
was adopt ed.

CHAI R SEEKI NS renoved his objection.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 10- March 1, 2006



9:26: 14 AM
Hearing no further objections, Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT pointed out t hat the Depart nent of
Corrections would be expected to handle nore escorts and asked
Ms. Parker the reason for the zero fiscal notes.

PORTI A PARKER, Deputy Conm ssioner, Department of Corrections
(DOC) said they have very few escorting situations and the DOC
does them already. Also when the DOC perfornms the escorts, the
of fender or the offender’s famly pays for it in advance.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked for clarification whether the DOC woul d
be offering drug and al cohol treatment on site.

M5. PARKER said they accommobdate the provider to cone into the
facility to do the assessnent.

SENATOR HUGA NS noved CSSB 216(JUD) out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendations and attached fiscal notes. Hearing no
obj ections, the notion carri ed.

9:28: 55 AM

SB 222- PROTECTI ON OF PERSONAL | NFORMVATI ON

9:31: 07 AM
CHAI R RALPH SEEKI NS announced SB 222 to be up for consideration.

SENATOR CRETCHEN GUESS, sponsor, asked for the testinony of
Davi d Lawer.

9:31:46 AM

DAVID LAWER, Senior Vice President, First National Bank of
Al aska testified on Section 1, Personal Information Protection
Act. He said SB 222 has far reaching inplications, not only for
financial institutions but also for every person in the state
He said the bill poses substantial risks for all people and that
vi ol ati ons would be brought about for situations where persona
i nformati on was not even divul ged.

9:33: 57 AM

MR. LAWER asserted financial institutions have intense
information security systens yet they can be breached
unintentionally. He said he left his conputer on the night
before and the janitor could have accessed his accounts. He said

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 1, 2006



SB 222 would nmake the bank notify over 55,000 people of that
security breach

9: 36: 08 AM
MR. LAWER said the bank shares personal information with other
entities such as their credit card system Taking the bill to a

personal level, he said as a landlord, he possesses information
regarding his tenant and said he would be in violation of SB 222
if he were to leave a rent check on his desk at hone. He hoped
that was not the intended consequences of the l|egislation. He
advised the commttee that he had technical anendnents suggested
by ot her banking officials to submt.

9:38: 27 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT noted he and Senator Guess were studying the
di fferent suggestions nmade and were attenpting to strike a fair
bal ance. He asked the reason that the public shouldn’t expect a
tighter security systemat the bank.

MR. LAWER conceded the consuner should expect better security
and said his conputer at work has a series of passwrds as a

firewall. H's worry was that sinply by having a janitor alone
his office with his conmputer would be a breach of security as he
sees the bill witten. Nevertheless, under the definition of

security breach the bank would be obliged to notify the 55,000
custoners of the incident.

9:41: 24 AM

SENATOR FRENCH questioned whether it would be a breach when a
person attenpted to access a conputer but was halted due to a
password request.

MR. LAVWER said yes since there was no definition of *“breach of
security” in the bill.

SENATOR GUESS stated for edification, that “breach of security”

is defined on page 3, line 29, and “information systens” is
defined on page 24, line 12 in version |

9:43: 53 AM

SENATOR GUESS said she was unclear whether M. Lawer was
suggesting that the bill sponsors add violations for security

breaches within Section 1.
MR. LAWER responded it was the position of the banker’s

association that the violation be “the failure to disclose the
fact of wunauthorized disclosure of the information,” and they

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 1, 2006



need only alert the person whose information they have reason to
bel i eve was conproni sed.

9:46: 08 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked the nunber of people in the bank systens
that have access to information that would be protected under SB
222.

MR. LAWVER said everyone. Every account starts wth an
application and every application contains not only the
custonmer’s nane but also one or nore of the other elenents.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether they were required by federal law to
obtain a person’s social security nunber.

MR LAVER said correct.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked M. Lawer to describe security measures as
pertained to by federal |aw.

MR. LAWER said they perform periodic risk assessnments and in
ci rcunst ances where they detect the possibility of wunauthorized
di sclosure they notify custoners about that circunmstance. The
regulations are fluid. The bank is examned and audited
annual ly, including the security system and the systens of the
entities they contract with. The scope of the audit continually
increases and as a result, identifies the need for greater
security neasures.

9:49: 08 AM
Credit card conpanies are a good exanple. The bank is obliged to
see to the integrity of that security systemas well.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked whether the federal regulators audit the
security practices of the bank’s contractors.

MR. LAVER said yes.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether they neet the sane standards as the
bank.

MR. LAVER sai d he suspected they neet higher standards.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether the auditors generally find areas of
weaknesses.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 13- March 1, 2006



VR. LAWVER said auditors have a different perception of
weaknesses. For instance the last audit suggested a need for
seven character passwords that include at |east one nunber. He
guestioned whether that constituted a weakness in the security
system

CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Lawer his opinion of the risk of
unaut hori zed penetration of the bank’s security system

MR. LAWER said he believed their only exposure was internal. The
bank’s conmputer systens cannot be accessed by anyone not
connected internally. The greater risk is of exposed physical
records and the bank has suffered a burglary in the past.

9:52:44 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Lawer whether his bank had clear
policies for enployees on how to conply wth all privacy
pol i ci es.

MR. LAWER said yes. They support extensive personnel policies as
wel | as other procedures relating to information security.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced a brief recess at 9:53:35 AM

9:53: 53 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS held the bill in commttee.

SB 284- SENTENCI NG FOR ALCOHOL- RELATED CRI MES
9:54: 31 AM

CHAI R RALPH SEEKI NS announced SB 284 to be up for consideration.

SENATOR CGENE THERRI AULT advised conmttee nenbers there were
questions in the previous bill hearing that his staff would
answer .

DAVE STANCLIFF, Staff to Senator Therriault, brought comittee
menbers up to speed on the bill. There are three conceptual
changes that the drafters are working on. In response to Senator
GQuess’s question about the definition of “alcoholic beverage,”
it would be the sane as “consunption of alcohol.”

9:57: 05 AM

MR.  STANCLIFF continued with reference to Senator French's
suggestion for considering nmultiple DU s. Staff is working on
| anguage to say if a person is convicted of three or nore DU s
that the judge, who would have the discretion to inpose any

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 1, 2006



length up to a Ilifetime ban, could use the new sentencing
option. The Department of Law has stated that the use of al coho
monitoring devices is exceptionally effective.

9:59: 03 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT said during the previous day’ s discussion, he
failed to bring to light that the bill wuld only be nmade

appl i cabl e under the certain crines |isted under AS 11.41.

MR. STANCLIFF added AS 11.41 is the section of statute that
deals with felonies and crines against persons, such as nurder
rape and assault. The mnimum in that section would be third
degree assaul t.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked for testinony from the Departnent of
Law.

10: 01: 10 AM

DOUG WOCOLI VER, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Departnent of Law
(DOL), noted that there would be no way for the courts to know
whet her anyone has violated the conditions of probation unless
the person was arrested on another offense. He said it wasn't a
probl em but just wanted to | et them know.

SENATOR HOLLIS FRENCH said SB 249, which is his bill, would
assist in letting the officers do a search to determ ne whet her
they were violating the ternms of their probation.

10: 03: 08 AM
MR. WOOLI VER agr eed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Wboliver whether a private citizen
woul d be able to report when a person was violating conditions
of probation or parole.

MR. WOCLI VER said yes and then it would be up to the police
whet her they followed up on it.

SENATOR FRENCH noted an officer could then get a warrant and
arrest the person.

CHAIR SEEKINS held the bill in commttee.

SB 301- CHANGE OF VENUE I N ClVIL CASES

10: 05: 15 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS announced SB 301 to be up for consideration.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- March 1, 2006



ROBERT FAGERSTROM infornmed the committee that he sent in a
public opinion nmessage (POV) the day before and w shed to add
that he served in United States Navy and in the Al aska Arny
National CGuard. He is aware of the uniform code of mlitary
justice (UCMJ). He has served on a jury in Nonme and he has al so
been a defendant and a plaintiff. He said he knows the high cost
of litigation and does not believe that any Legislature has the
right to second-guess the Anerican way of justice. He nmaintained
that the system does not need to be fixed and opposed the bill.

10: 08: 00 AM

M CHAEL SCHUEI DER, attorney, testified in opposition to SB 301.
He said the reason that court proceedings are held in the city
where the incident occurred is because the people who live there
have an interest in the conduct that occurs in their town. He
asked the commttee to imagine they were legally crossing the
street when an out-of-town citizen runs them over and seriously
infjures them |If SB 301 were enacted, they, along with their
| awyer and staff, doctor, and any other w tnesses would be the
ones who would have to travel to the city where the offender
lived in order to hold the court proceedings.

10: 10: 53 AM

MR. SCHEUI DER said he is aware that the commttee has heard sone
outcones that they mght not approve of but the jury is the
entity that heard all the facts, not the commttee nenbers. He
said he recently tried a case in Bethel and the jury did not
award to the defense. He suggested the system works in nost
jurisdictions in the United States. Insurance is a hugely
lucrative industry that gets paid to take risks and they nake
noney on those risks, he stated.

10: 12: 55 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT expressed concern over the unintended
consequences of the bill, but he disagreed with M. Schueider’s

suggestion that the situation was fine because of the insurance
factor. He noted the conmittee has heard testinony that western
Al aska does not fit the bell curve and is lopsided to the point
where attorneys boast about |arge jury awards.

MR. SCHUEI DER responded the commttee nenbers nust make certain
that things are out of balance before passing the |egislation.
He respectfully suggested the conmmttee was not hearing both
si des of the issue.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 16- March 1, 2006



CHAI R SEEKI NS asked M. Schueider whether he was a nenber of
Al aska Action Trust.

10: 16: 10 AM
MR. SCHUEI DER affirmed he is a nenber, a past chairman, and a
frequent participant.

CHAI R SEEKINS said Al aska Action Trust attenpted to denonstrate
that a defendant has a right to trial by its peers and a
plaintiff has the sane right. He asked whether there was case
| aw that showed the plaintiff has an absolute right to a tria
by the plaintiff’s peers and that a plaintiff gets to decide the
venue.

MR. SCHUEI DER responded the plaintiff is constrained by existing
venue rules. The circunstances and existing |aw define where
cases nmust be brought. He said it wasn’t that plaintiff’s have
an absolute right to choose venue, plaintiff’s have the fact
that determ ne where venue is appropriate and the existing rules
provide fair venue for both parties in nost settings.

10: 18: 59 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS asked M. Schueider whether he agreed that the
Al aska rules of general procedure on venue are subject to state
statute, which could be nodified.

MR. SCHUEIDER said by a two-thirds majority, yes. He said he
does not challenge the power of the Legislature but he contended
the bill was poor public policy and would generate nany worse
out cones than the current system

CHAIR SEEKINS said he would look at Rule 3, which he said
subordinates the court’s authority to change venue to the
Legi sl ature w thout having to change the rule.

10: 20: 35 AM
JAMES M LLER, owner and general nmanager of Alaska Wather
Qperations, testified in support of the bill. H's conmpany does

construction work for up to 60 conmmunities in Alaska. He said it
was inmportant to maintain inpartial juries and that is sonetinmes
difficult to obtain due to village sizes and | ocati on.

10: 23: 38 AM

SENATOR FRENCH asked M. Mller to imagine being a landlord
whose tenants trashed his property to the tune of $5,6000 and
then noved to another city. The landlord and his w tnesses woul d

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 1, 2006



probably have to drop the claim because they would not be able
to handle all the travel costs to get to the changed venue.

MR. MLLER agreed that was a good point. He said it works both
ways. He suggested that the bill should state a provision for an
inpartial jury.

10: 27: 22 AM

WLFORD RYAN, nenber of Alaska Air Carriers Association
testified in support of SB 301. He said businesses should have
the opportunity to defend thenselves in their hone area.

10: 30: 45 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS held SB 301 in conmittee.

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair Seekins adjourned the neeting at 10: 33:45 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 1, 2006



